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THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action to be taken, you should consult your
stockbroker or other registered dealer in securities, bank manager, solicitor, professional accountant or other

professional adviser.

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited, you should at once hand
this circular and the enclosed proxy form to the purchaser or transferee or to the bank, stockbroker or other
agents through whom the sale or transfer was effected for transmission to the purchaser or transferee.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this circular, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this circular.

CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED
HEIMEERBRAAF

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 508)

Executive Directors Registered Office
CHOW Yei Ching (Chairman) Canon’s Court,
FUNG Pak Kwan (Managing Director) 22 Victoria Street,
KUOK Hoi Sang Hamilton, HM 12,
KAN Ka Hon Bermuda
Lily CHOW
Principal Place of Business
22nd Floor,
Independent Non-Executive Directors Chevalier Commercial Centre,
Shinichi YONEHARA 8 Wang Hoi Road,
WU King Cheong Kowloon Bay,
Hong Kong

30th July, 2004

To the Shareholders
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Dear Sir/Madam, =
PROPOSALS RELATING TO %g = =
RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS SQ rl;: :&_?
GENERAL MANDATES TO ISSUE SHARES AND fi:_: < oy
REPURCHASE SHARES AND R
AMENDMENTS TO THE BYE-LAWS _,_l-;; -
' =z 7 =
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING P » 7y

M &

INTRODUCTION

The Directors wish to seek the approval of shareholders to re-elect the retiring directpss, to~obtain
general mandates to the Directors of the Company to issue and repurchase shares of HK$0.5 each in the share

capital of the Company (“the Share(s)”), and to amend the Bye-laws of the Company.

This circular is to provide the shareholders with all the information reasonably necessary to enable them

to make an informed decision on whether to vote for or against the resolutions as mentioned herein and which,
inter alia, will be dealt with at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held at 22nd Floor, Chevalier
Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong on Friday, 3rd September, 2004 at 10:00

a.m. (“the 2004 Annual General Meeting”).

*  For identification purpose only




RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS |

In accordance with Bye-law 112 of the Bye-laws of the’Company, Miss Lily Chow who has been longest
in office since her last election, will retire by rotation at the 2004 Annual General Meeting and being eligible,
offers herself for re-election. Ordinary resolution will therefore be proposed at the 2004 Annual General
Meeting to re-elect Miss Lily Chow as Director of the Company. Pursuant to Rule 13.74 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules™), the
details of Miss Chow are set out as belows:-

Miss Lily CHOW, Executive Director of the Company, aged 41, joined Chevalier Group in 1990. She is
responsible for strategic planning and business development of the Group. She is also a member of
Guangdong Provincial Committee of Chinese People’s Consultative Conference, Committee of Taiwan, Hong
Kong, Macau and Overseas of the Zhejing Provincial Committee of Chinese People’s Political Conference and
Shanghai Women'’s Federation Committee. She holds a Bachelor Degree and is the daughter of Dr CHOW Yei
Ching, Chairman of the Company. Miss Chow has not held any directorships in any other listed companies in
the last three years. Save as disclosed above, Miss Chow does not have any relationship with any other
Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company. Miss
Chow does not have any interest in the shares of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”). There is neither any service contract between the Company and Miss Chow
nor any specified term for the length or proposed length of service with the Company in respect of the
directorship. In addition to the authorisation of the Board of Directors to fix the remuneration of the Directors
at the annual general meeting, the emolument of Director is determined by reference to the Company’s
performance and profitability, as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions.

SHARE ISSUE MANDATE

Resolution 5 to be proposed at the 2004 Annual General Meeting (“Resolution 57) relates to the
granting of a general mandate which will empower the Directors of the Company to issue new Shares not
exceeding 20 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue at the
date of passing of the resolution (including making and granting offers, agreements and options which would
or might require Shares to be issued, allotted or disposed of) during the period up to the next annual general
meeting of the Company, or at the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of
the Company is required by law to be held, or on revocation of Resolution § by an ordinary resolution of the
shareholders at general meeting, whichever is the earliest.

REPURCHASE OF SHARES

The Company is allowed by its Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws and the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended) to repurchase its own Shares. Its Bye-laws also allow it to provide financial
assistance for the purpose of purchasing its own Shares.

Resolution 6 to be proposed at the 2004 Annual General Meeting (“Resolution 6”) relates to the
granting of a general mandate to the Directors of the Company to repurchase, on the Stock Exchange, the
Shares up to a maximum of 10 per cent of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the
proposed resolution (“the Repurchase Proposal™).

The Shares to be purchased by the Company are fully paid-up. As at 23rd July, 2004, being the latest
practicable date prior to the printing of this circular (“the Latest Practicable Date™), there were 171,355,871
Shares in issue. Therefore, subject to the passing of the proposed Resolution 6 at the 2004 Annual General
Meeting and on the assumption that no additional Shares will be issued and that prior to the date of the
proposed resolution, no Share will be repurchased by the Company, the Company would be allowed under the
mandate to repurchase a maximum of 17,135,587 Shares.

The Directors of the Company believe that the Repurchase Proposal is in the interests of the Company
and its shareholders. Trading conditions on the Stock Exchange have sometimes been volatile in recent years
and there have been occasions when the Shares were trading at a substantial discount to their underlying net
asset value. Repurchases of the Shares may enhance the Company’s net asset value per Share and earnings per
Share. In these circumstances, the ability of the Company to repurchase the Shares can be beneficial to those
shareholders who retain their investment in the Company since their percentage interest in the assets of the
Company would increase in proportion to the number of the Shares repurchased by the Company.
Furthermore, exercise of the mandate granted under the Repurchase Proposal by the Directors of the Company
would increase the trading volume of the Shares on the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors of the Company do not expect there tp be any material adverse impact on the working
capital or gearing position of the Company, as compared with the position disclosed in the latest audited
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2004, as a result of repurchases made
under the Repurchase Proposal even if the mandate is exercised in full. However, no purchase would be made
in circumstances that would have a material adverse impact on the working capital or gearing position of the
Company (as compared with the position disclosed in the latest published audited financial statements) unless
the Directors of the Company consider that such purchases would be in the best interests of the Company
notwithstanding such material adverse impact.

FUNDING OF REPURCHASES

In repurchasing the Shares, the Company may only apply funds legally available for such purpose in
accordance with its Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws and the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended) which provide that the Shares may be repurchased out of the profits of the Company and/or out of
the proceeds of a fresh issue of the Shares made for this purpose and/or even out of the capital paid up on the
repurchased Shares.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

The Directors of the Company have undertaken to the Stock Exchange to exercise the power of the
Company to make repurchases pursuant to the proposed Resolution 6 in accordance with the Listing Rules and
all applicable laws.

None of the Directors of the Company nor, to the best of their knowledge having made all reasonable
enquiries, any of their associates presently intend to sell the Shares to the Company under the Repurchase
Proposal in the event that the Repurchase Proposal is approved by the shareholders at the 2004 Annual
General Meeting.

Meanwhile, the Company has not been notified by any connected persons of the Company that they have
a present intention to sell any Shares, or that they have undertaken not to sell any Shares held by them to the
Company, in the event that the Repurchase Proposal is approved by the shareholders at the 2004 Annual
General Meeting.

If, on the exercise of the powers granted under the Repurchase Proposal, a shareholder’s proportionate
interest in the voting rights of the Company increases, such increase will be treated as an acquisition for the
purpose of rule 32 of the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers (“the Takeovers Code™). As a result, a
shareholder or a group of shareholders acting in concert (within the meaning under the Takeovers Code),
depending on the level of such increase, may obtain or consolidate control of the Company and thereby
obliged to make a mandatory general offer in accordance with rule 26 of the Takeovers Code.

As at the Latest Practicable Date and insofar the Directors of the Company are aware of, the substantial
shareholders of the Company are as follows:

% of Issued Share Capital

Name of if power is
Substantial Number of exercised in full to
Shareholder Shares held at present repurchase Shares
CHOW Yei Ching

(Notes I and 3) 93,810,787 54.75% 60.83%
MIYAKAWA Michiko

(Note 2) 93,810,787 54.75% 60.83%

Chevalier International
Holdings Limited
(“CIHL”) (Note 3) 86,994,933 50.77% 56.41%

Chevalier (HK) Limited
(“CHK”) (Note 3) 13,471,200 7.86% 8.74%

Firstland Company Limited
(“Firstland™) (Note 3) 13,471,200 7.86% 8.74%
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Notes.—

1. These shares were held by Dr Chow Yei Chiné as (i) personal interest of 6,815,854, (ii) corporate interest of
86,994,933 in which Dr Chow is deemed to be interested in (ii) under Part XV of the SFO.

2. These shares were held by Dr Chow. Ms Miyakawa Michiko, the spouse of Dr Chow, is deemed to be interested
in the same parcel of 93,810,787 shares under Part XV of the SFO.

3. These shares of 13,471,200 were held by Firstland, a company incorporated in Hong Kong and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CHK. CHK is a company incorporated in Hong Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
CIHL. CIHL is a company incorporated in Bermuda. CHK, CIHL, Dy Chow and his spouse were deemed to be
interested in 13,471,200 shares under Part XV of the SFO.

In the event that the Directors of the Company shall exercise in full such powers under the Repurchase
Proposal and on the basis that there is no other change in the then issued share capital of the Company, the
interest of the above substantial shareholders would be increased to approximately the percentage shown in
the last column above. The Directors of the Company consider that such increase would not give rise to an
obligation to make a mandatory offer under rule 26 of the Takeovers Code. The number of Shares held by the
public would not fall below 25% of the issued share capital of the Company.

SHARE PRICES

The highest and lowest prices at which the Shares have been traded on the Stock Exchange during each
of the previous twelve months were as follows:

Highest Lowest

HKS$ HK3

July 2003 0.700 0.600
August 2003 0.720 0.570
September 2003 1.020 0.760
October 2003 0.820 0.720
November 2003 0.940 0.740
December 2003 2.400 0.830
January 2004 ' 2.100 1.200
February 2004 1.400 1.280
March 2004 1.280 1.170
April 2004 1.200 1.120
May 2004 1.100 0.900
June 2004 0.950 0.850

REPURCHASE OF SHARES MADE BY THE COMPANY

The Company has not purchased any of its Shares (whether on the Stock Exchange or otherwise) in the
six months preceding the date of this circular.

EXTENSION OF SHARE ISSUE MANDATE

Resolution 7 to be proposed at the 2004 Annual General Meeting (“Resolution 77) relates to the
extension of the 20 per cent general mandate to be granted. Subject to the passing at the 2004 Annual General
Meeting of Resolution 5, Resolution 6 and Resolution 7, the Directors of the Company will be given a general
mandate to add all those number of Shares which may from time to time be purchased under the Repurchase
Proposal to the 20 per cent general mandate, thus, the limit of the share issue mandate would include, in
addition to the 20 per cent limit as aforesaid, the number of Shares repurchased under the Repurchase
Proposal.

AMENDMENTS TO THE BYE-LAWS

The Directors of the Company would like to propose, by way of a special resolution, to amend the Bye-
laws of the Company at the 2004 Annual General Meeting in view of the recent amendments to the Listing
Rules in respect of the provisions of the bye-laws of a listed company and for the purpose of reflecting the
best business practice and facilitating administration of the Company.

The details of the proposed amendments to the Bye-laws of the Company are set out in Resolution 8 in
the notice of the 2004 Annual General Meeting and the major amendments include:

(i) to exclude the votes cast by a shareholder which are in contravention of a requirement or
restriction under the Listing Rules;

(ii) to prohibit the Directors from voting at and being counted towards the quorum of the board
meeting on any matter in which any of his associates has a material interest; and




(iii) to require that the minimum séven-day period for lodgment by the shareholders of the notice to
nominate a Director should commence no edrlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of
the meeting appointed for such elecfion and end no later than seven days before the date of such
meeting.

(iv) to enable the removal of a Director before the expiration of his period of office by ordinary
resolution at general meeting;

2004 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The notice convening the 2004 Annual General Meeting is set out on pages 6 to 10 of this circular.

A form of proxy for use at the 2004 Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report for 2004 are being
sent to the shareholders together with this circular. Whether or not you are able to attend the meeting, please
complete the accompanying form of proxy in accordance with the instructions printed thereon and return the
same to the Company’s Branch Share Registrars in Hong Kong, Standard Registrars Limited of G/F, Bank of
East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong as soon as possible and in any
event not later than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjourned meeting.
Completion and delivery of the form of proxy will not preclude you from attending and voting at the 2004
Annual General Meeting if you so wish.

PROCEDURES BY WHICH SHAREHOLDERS MAY DEMAND POLL

Pursuant to Bye-law 76 of the Bye-law of the Company, a resolution put to vote at a general meeting
shall be decided on a show of hands unless a poll is (before or on the declaration of the result of the show of
hands) demanded by:-

(1)  the chairman of the meeting; or

(i) at least three shareholders present in person or by proxy or by representative for the time being
entitled to vote at the meeting; or

(iii)) any shareholder or shareholders present in person or by proxy or by representative and
representing not less than one-tenth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having the
right to vote at the meeting; or

(iv) any shareholder or shareholders present in person or by proxy or by representative and holding
shares in the Company conferring a right to vote at the meeting being shares on which an
aggregate sum has been paid up equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all the
shares conferring that right.

If a poll is demanded otherwise than on the election of a chairman of the meeting or on any question of
adjournment, it shall be taken in such manner at such time and place, not being more than 30 days from the
date of the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the poll was demanded, as the chairman of the meeting
directs. No notice needs to be given of a poll not taken immediately. The result of the poll shall be deemed to
be the resolution of the meeting at which the poll was demanded. The demand for a poll may be withdrawn.

Unless a poll is so demanded and the demand is not withdrawn, a declaration of the result on a show of
hands by the chairman of the meeting and an entry to that effect in the minutes book shall be conclusive
evidence of the voting result.

RECOMMENDATION

The Directors consider that the re-election of the retiring Directors, the Share Issue Mandate, the
Repurchase Proposal, the Extension of Share Issue Mandate and the proposal for amendments to the Bye-laws
of the Company are in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders and accordingly recommend all
the shareholders to vote in favour of the relevant resolutions to be proposed at the 2004 Annual General
Meeting.

Yours faithfully
For and on behalf of the Board
Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited
CHOW Yei Ching
Chairman




NOTICE OF 2004 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED
HINMEZERBRAT"

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of the Company

will be held at 22nd Floor., Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8§ Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong on
Friday, 3rd September, 2004 at 10:00 a.m. for the following purposes:—

As Ordinary Business

1. - To receive and consider the audited financial statements and the Reports of the Directors and
Auditors for the year ended 31st March, 2004.

2.  To declare a final dividend.
3. Tore-elect retiring Directors and authorize the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.
4. Tore-appoint Auditors and authorize the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.

And As Special Business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without modification the

following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:—

*

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
5. “THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the Directors of the Company during the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and
deal with additional shares in the capital of the Company and to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require the exercise of such powers be and is hereby
generally and unconditionally approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) shall authorize the Directors of the Company during the
Relevant Period to make or grant offers, agreements and options which might require the
exercise of such powers after the end of the Relevant Period;

(¢) the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the Directors
of the Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a), otherwise than pursuant to (i) a
Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined) or (ii) the exercise of subscription rights under any
share option scheme of the Company or (iii) an issue of shares as scrip dividends pursuant to
the Bye-laws of the Company from time to time, shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of passing of this
Resolution and the said approval shall be limited accordingly; and

(d) for the purposes of this Resolution and Resolution 6:—

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution until whichever is
the earliest of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company;
(it} the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by the Bye-laws of the Company or any applicable law of

Bermuda to be held; and

For identification purpose only
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(iii) the revocation or'variation of this Resolution by an ordinary resolution of the
shareholders of the Company in General Meeting.

“Rights Issue” means the allotment, issue or grant of shares pursuant to an offer (open for a
period fixed by the Directors of the Company) made to shareholders or any class thereof on
the Register of Members of the Company on a fixed record date pro rata to their then
holdings of such shares or class thereof (subject to such exclusion or other arrangements as
the Directors of the Company may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional
entitlements of having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the
requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any territory
outside Hong Kong).”

“THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the Directors of the Company during the
Relevant Period (as defined in Resolution 5(d) above) all powers of the Company to
repurchase its shares in the capital of the Company, subject to and in accordance with all
applicable laws and requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as amended from time to time, be and is hereby
generally and unconditionally approved; and

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of shares to be purchased by the Company pursuant to the
approval in paragraph (a) above during the Relevant Period shall not exceed 10% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company on the date of this
Resolution and the authority pursuant to paragraph (a) above shall be limited accordingly.”

“THAT the general mandate granted to the Directors of the Company to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares pursuant to Ordinary Resolution set out in Resolution 5 be and is hereby
extended by the addition thereto of an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of the
share capital of the Company which may be allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to
be allotted pursuant to such general mandate the aggregate nominal amount of share in the capital
of the Company, repurchased by the Company under the authority granted pursuant to Ordinary
Resolution set out in Resolution 6, provided that such amount shall not exceed 10% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company at the date of this
Resolution.”

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without amendments the following
resolutions as special resolution of the Company:

SPECIAL RESOLUTION
“THAT the Bye-laws of the Company be and are hereby amended in the following manner :~

(a) By adding the following new definitions of “associates” in Bye-law 1:—
““associates”shall have the meaning ascribed to it under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange from time to time”

(b) By deleting the existing definitions of “Company”, “Clearing House” and “Hong Kdng” in
Bye-law 1 and substituting therefor the following new definitions:—

“Company” shall mean Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited;

“Clearing House” shall mean a recognised clearing house within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as amended,
modified or replaced or re-enacted from time to time or a clearing house or authorised share
depository recognised by the laws of the jurisdiction in which the shares of the Company are
listed or quoted on a stock exchange in such jurisdiction.”




(c)

(d)

(e)

“Hong Kong” shall mean the Hong Kohg Special Administrative Region of the People’s
Republic of China:

By adding the following new definition of “holding company” and “subsidiary” in Bye-law
1:-

“the expressions “holding company” and “subsidiary” shall have the meanings ascribed to
them by the Companies Act and/or the rules and regulations of the stock exchange in the
relevant territories from time to time.”

By replacing the words “these presents” by “the bye-laws” of Bye-law 2.
By adding the following new Bye-law 81 A immediately after the existing Bye-law 81:

81A. Where the Company has knowledge that any member is, under the applicable Statutes
and/or the rules and regulations of the stock exchange in the relevant territories from
time to time, required to abstain from voting on any particular resolution or restricted
to voting only for or only against any particular resolution, any votes cast by or on
behalf of such member in contravention of such requirement or restriction shall not be
counted. *

By deleting the existing Bye-laws 103(A)(i), (ii), (iii) and (v) in their entirety and
substituting therefor the following new Bye-laws:

“103(A)(i) No Director or intended Director shall be disqualified by his office from
contracting, in his own capacity or by his associate(s) with the Company either
as vendor, purchaser or otherwise nor shall any such contract or any contract or
arrangement entered into by or on behalf of the Company with any person,
company or partnership of or in which any Director or his associate(s) shall be a
member or otherwise interested be capable on that account of being avoided, nor
shall any Director or his associate(s) so contracting or being such member or so
interested be liable to account to the Company for any profit realised by any
such contract or arrangement by reason only of such Director or his associate(s)
holding that office or the fiduciary relationship thereby established, provided
that such Director shall forthwith disclose the nature of his or his associate(s)
interests in any contract or arrangement in which he or any of his associate(s) is/
are interested as required by and subject to the provisions of the Companies Act.

(ii) Notwithstanding such disclosure is made as aforesaid, a Director shall, subject
as provided in bye-law 103(A) (iii) not be entitled to vote in respect of any
contract or arrangement in which he or any of his associate(s) is/are materially
interested and he shall not be counted in the quorum present at the meeting at
which such contract or arrangement is considered. The question whether a
director or his associate(s) is/are materially interested in a contract or
arrangement shall be determined by a resolution of the Board in respect of which
the Director or any of his associate(s) whose interest is/are being discussed shall
not be entitled to vote.

(iii) Notwithstanding that a Director or his associate(s) is/are or may be materially
interested in any relevant contract or arrangement, he shall be entitled to vote on
any resolution proposed at a meeting of the board in relation to the following
matters:

(a) the giving to such Director or any of his associate(s) of any security or
indemnity in respect of money lent or obligations incurred or undertaken
by him and/or any of his associate(s) at the request of or for the benefit of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(b) the giving of any security or indemnity to a third party in respect of a debt
or obligation of the Company or any of its subsidiaries for which the
Director or his associate(s) has himself/themselves assumed responsibility
in whole or in part and whether alone or jointly under a guarantee or
indemnity or by the giving of security;

_8—
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(©)

(d)

(e)

®

any contract, arrangement or proposal concerning an offer of shares or
debentures or other securities of or by the Company or any other company
which the Company may promote or be interested in for subscription or
purchase, where the Director or his associate(s) is/are or is/are to be
interested as a participant(s) in the underwriting or sub-underwriting of the
offer;

any contract, arrangement or proposal in which the Director or his
associate(s) is/are interested in the same manner as other holders of shares
or debentures or other securities of the Company by virtue only of his/their
interest in shares or debentures or other securities of the Company;

any contract, arrangement or proposal concerning any other company in
which the Director or his associate(s) is/are interested only, whether
directly or indirectly, as an officer or executive or shareholder or in which
the Director or his associate(s) is/are beneficially interested in shares of
that company, provided that the Director and any of his associates are not
in aggregate beneficially interested in 5% or more of the issued shares of
any class of such company (or of any third company through which his
interest or that of any of his associates is derived) or of the voting rights.
For the purpose of this paragraph, there shall be disregarded any shares
held by a Director or his associate(s) as bare trustee or custodian and in
which he or any of them has no beneficial interest (discretionary or
otherwise), any shares comprised in a trust in which the Director’s interest
and/or the interest of his associate(s) is/are in reversion or remainder if and
so long as some other person is entitled to receive the income thereof, and
any shares comprised in an authorised unit trust scheme in which the
Director or his associate(s) is/are interested only as a unit holder(s) and
any shares which carry no voting rights at general meetings and very
restrictive dividend and return of capital rights;

any proposal or arrangement concerning the benefit of employees of the
Company or its subsidiaries including:

(i)  the adoption, modification or operation of any employees’ share
scheme or any share incentive or share option scheme involving the
issue or grant of options over shares or other securities of the
Company under which the Director or his associate(s) may benefit;
or

(i1) the adoption, modification or operation of a pension fund or
retirement, death or disability benefits scheme which relates both to
Directors, their associates(s) and employees of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries and does not provide in respect of any Director, or
his associate(s), as such any privilege or advantage not generally
accorded to the class of persons to which such scheme or fund
relates.

A general notice to the Directors by a Director that he or any of his associate(s) is/are
to be regarded as interested in any contract or arrangement which may be made with
any specified person, firm or corporation after the date of such notice shall be a
sufficient declaration of interest in relation to any contract or arrangement so made,
provided that no such notice shall be of effect unless either it is given at a meeting of
the Directors or the Director takes reasonable steps to ensure that it is brought up and
read at the next meeting of the Directors after it is given.”

By deleting the following words in the existing Bye-law 116:-

“at least seven days before the date of the general meeting”




and substituting therefor the following : ‘

“in each case, during the period (being a period of at least seven days) commencing on the
day after despatch of the notice of general meeting at which elections to the office of
Director are to be considered and ending on the day that falls seven days before the date of
the general meeting (both days inclusive).”

(h) By deleting the words “Special Resolution” and substituting therefor the words “Ordinary
Resolution” in each of Bye-laws 102(A)(vii) and 118.

By Order of the Board
KAN Ka Hon
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 30th July, 2004

Principal Place of Business.

22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre
8 Wang Hoi Road

Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong

Registered Office:
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street
Hamilton, HM 12
Bermuda

Notes:

(a) A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened by this notice is entitled to appoint one or more
proxies to attend and, in the event of a poll, to vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

(b)Y In order to be valid, a form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any), must be
deposited at the Company’s Branch Share Registrars in Hong Kong, STANDARD REGISTRARS LIMITED of G/F,
Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the
time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjourned meeting.

(¢)  The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 23rd August, 2004 to Friday, 27th August,
2004, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the
proposed final dividend, all transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s Branch Share Registrars in Hong Kong, Standard Registrars Limited not later than 4:00 p.m. on
Friday, 20th August, 2004.

(d)  An explanatory statement regarding the proposals of re-electing the retiring Director of the Company, granting

general mandates to issue new shares and to repurchase own shares, and making amendments to the Bye-laws of the
Company will be despatched to the members of the Company together with this notice.
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Nancid mmar

{amounts expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

The following is a summary of the total assets, total liabilities, share capital and results of the Group

for the five years ended 31st March, 2004.

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
Financials ($ Million)
Total assets 635 549 501 466 473
Total liabilities 199 138 116 102 89
Minority interests 0.23 0.18 0.18 0.19 0.17
Shareholders’ funds 436 411 385 364 384
Share capital * 171 171 171 171 171

(No. of shares issued — in Million)

Turnover 1,182 1,055 775 688 671
Net profit (loss) for the year 26 8 (9) (23) 23
Per Share Basis* (§)
Earnings (loss) 0.15 0.05 (0.05) (0.13) 0.13
Dividend 0.20 0.10 0.05 - 0.05
Net asset value (at book value) 2.55 2.40 2.25 212 2.24

* The prior year’s data and calculation has been adjusted for the consolidation of the Company’s ordinary

shares in June 2003,

Turnover Net Profit (Loss) Shareholders' Funds
(3 Miltion) ($ Million) ($ Million)
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l E In spite of the harsh operating
environment, the overall performance of
the Group during the year improved

substantially with a net profit of HK$22.9

million compared with a net loss of HK$

22.8 million last year. The remarkable

results were mainly contributed by the

steady income derived from technical
and maintenance services and improved
return from investment in financial

products.
DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors recommends the
payment of a final dividend of HK3
Dr CHOW Yei Ching, Chairman cents (2003: Nil) per share payable to

shareholders whose names appear on
the Register of Members of the Company on Friday, 27th August, 2004. This, together
with the interim dividend of HK2 cents (2003: Nil) per share paid during the year,
represents a dividend distribution of HK5 cents (2003: Nil) per share for the year
ended 31st March, 2004. Subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting, the dividend warrants will be distributed and paid on or
about Wednesday, 8th September, 2004.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The notebook computer market has been extremely competitive, but the Group
managed to gradually increase its market share by continuously introducing stylish and
competitive products at attractive prices. Performance of the Business Machine
Division, however, is challenged by the still sluggish economy. The Group expects
demand for office equipment to pick up again as the economic situation in Hong
Kong and the region improves.




The Network Solutions and Telecommunication
Systems Division recorded slightly decrease in turnover
during the year under review. During the year, it was
awarded several major contracts which included a
large-scale PABX system installation contract for Four
Seasons Hotel, a six-star hotel development at Hong
Kong Station Development, a 2-year term contract on the
supply, installation, commissioning and maintenance of

Toshiba Business Telephone System for various HKSAR
government departments and to provide NEC PABX
Telephone System Maintenance Service Support to all

American International Assurance offices in Hong Kong

and Macau.

Turnover and net profit of
the Technical and
Maintenance Services
Division also substantially
increased during the year
under review. It was the
unwavering effort of our
team in maintaining quality
service to our customers
and to keep tight control
on operating expenses that
accounted for such

outstanding performance. Major clients include the
Mass Transit Railway Corporation, the Hong Kong

Bank and Hang Seng Bank.

oshiba Notebook Computer - Satellite M30

E-studio 4511 digital colour copier
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In general, the results of the Thailand office were not satisfactory due to the decrease
in profit margin for notebook computers even though the performance of
telecommunication systems improved during the year. To bring the operation back
onto the growth track, reorganization of other divisions such as office equipments,
notebook computers and technical and maintenance services was undertaken.

To enhance the yield during low interest period, the Company diversified its
investment portfolio into high-rated structured notes and bonds. As a result, profit
from those investments contributed a significant portion to the Group’s results this
year. The group will continue the strategy in handling its cash on hand.

Consolidation of Shares

On 5th June, 2003, the shareholders at the special general meeting of the Company
approved the consolidation of every five existing issued and unissued shares of
HK$0.10 each into one new share of HK$0.50 each in the share capital of the
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Mr. PK Fung, Managing Director of the Group, in
the control room of Digital Surveillance and Security
Systems at Two International Finance Center




airman’s Statement

PROSPECTS

Last year was a tough year for the Group’s business. Nevertheless, the Group was back
on the profitable track after a major business restructuring in 2002 and 2003. Looking
forward, the Group will evaluate the expansion of its notebook computer and
telecommunication business in China. Although the Chinese government has recently
implemented stringent measures to curb overheated economic activities, the
economy's overall pace of growth remains robust. The Group is confident that the
consumer market in China will continue to grow.

In addition, the Group is also optimistic about the recovery of the Hong Kong
economy. In the first quarter of 2004, Hong Kong recorded a 6.8% y-o-y rate of
growth, the fastest in more than three years. During this cycle, the economy was
driven not only by a strong pick-up in consumer spending and exports, but was also
supported by increased capital investment by businesses as they regained confidence
In the recovering economy. Such increase in investment will, in turn, filter through into
increase in spending in office and computer equipment and other related services.

After years of consolidation, the Group has emerged with better financial position and
a stronger balance sheet. It will continue to improve its competitive edge in terms of
product, service and operational efficiency so as to enhance its shareholders’ value.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank all our staff for
their concerted effort in the past year.

CHOW Yei Ching
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15th July, 2004
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nancial Review

As at 31st March, 2004, the Group’s total net asset amounted to approximately HK$384 million
(2003: HK$364 million), an increase of HK$20 million or 5% when compared with 2003.

Total debt 1o equity ratio was 0.04% (2003: 0.02%) and net debt to equity ratio was nil (2003: Nil),
which are expressed as a percentage of bank and other borrowings, and net borrowings
respectively, over the total net asset of HK$384 million (2003: HK$364 million).

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s bank and other borrowings amounted to HK$151,000
(2003: HK$73,000). Cash and deposit at bank amounted to HK$64 million (2003: HK$78 million)
and there are no net borrowings for the two years.

Finance costs for the year amounted to HK$22,000 (2003: HK$68,000), a decrease of HK$46,000
as compared with 2003.

The Company has provided guarantees in respect of loan facilities granted to subsidiary companies
amounting to HK$3,102,000 (2003: HK$5,421,000).

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial management. To achieve
better risk control and minimise cost of funds, the Group’s treasury activities are centralised. Cash is
generally placed in short-term deposits mostly denominated in Hong Kong or US dollars. The
Group’s liquidity and financing requirements are frequently reviewed. In anticipating new
investments or maturity of bank loans, the Group will consider new financing while maintaining an
appropriate level of gearing.
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jor Properties

Particulars of major properties held by the Group are as follows:
Approximate
gross Lease Group's
Location Usage floor area term interest
5q.ft. %
Thailand
No.540 Bamrungmuang Road,  Office premises 21,300 Freehold 100
Debsirin Sub-district, and showroom
Pomprab District,
Bangkok Metropolis
The Mainland
Units 4, 5, 6 and 7 of 18th Floor, Office premises 7,200 Medium 100
Dongshan Plaza,
Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province
Unit 1, 15th Floor, Staff quarters 1,400 Long 100
Ming Ngan Court,
Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province
Units B and F, 18th Floor, Staff quarters 1,800 Long 100
Kam Lai Square, Shanghai
Hong Kong
Unit 5 of 3rd Floor, Service centre 1,660 Medium 100
Elite Industrial Centre,
833 Cheung Sha Wan Road,
Kowloon
23rd Floor, No. 88 Lockhart Road, Service centre 2,010 Medium 100
Wanchai

e i ialimr Tt Lyt Al e | mm P | DAarmamed INAD DANA O



Report of the Directors

The Directors present to shareholders their annual report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2004.

Principal Activities
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while the principal activities of its
principal subsidiaries and associate are shown on pages 53 to 54 and note 13 to the financial

statements respectively.

The Group’s turnover and profit from operations for the year ended 31st March, 2004 analysed by
business and geographical segments are set out in note 22 to the financial statements.

Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2004 are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 24. An interim dividend of HK2 cents per share was paid on Tuesday,

20th January, 2004. The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK3 cents
per share. '

Share Capital

Movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are set out in note 20 to the financial
statements.

Share Option Scheme

Particulars of the share option scheme to subscribe for shares in the Company and the share
options exercised during the year are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

Reserves
Movements in reserves during the year are set out in note 21 to the financial statements.

Investment Properties

Movements in investment properties during the year are set out in note 10 to the financiat
statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set out in note 11 to the financia!
statements.
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oport of the Directors

Financial Summary

A financial summary of the Group is shown on page 2.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The five largest suppliers accounted for 91% of the Group’s purchases for the year whereas the five
largest customers accounted for 25% of the Group's sales for the year. The largest supplier and the
largest customer accounted for 82% and 7% of the Group’s purchases and sales respectively. None
of the Directors, their associates nor any shareholder (whom to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five
largest suppliers or five largest customers.

Major Properties

Particulars of the major properties of the Group as at 31st March, 2004 are set out on page 9.
Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31st March, 2004, the Group employed approximately 600 full time staff globally. Total staff
costs amounted to approximately HK$80 million for the year ended 31st March, 2004. The
remuneration policies are reviewed periodically on the basis of the nature of job, market trend,
company performance and individual performance. Other staff benefits include bonuses awarded
on a discretionary basis, medical schemes, retirement schemes and employees’ share option
scheme.

Donations

During the year, the Group made donations of HK$287,000 to charitable bodies.

Principal Subsidiaries and Associate

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries and associate of the Group are set out in pages 53
and 54 and note 13 to the financial statements respectively.




Report ot the Directors

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-laws although there are no
restriction against such rights under the laws in Bermuda where the Company is incorporated.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities of the Company by the Company or
any of its subsidiaries during the year.

Directors
The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Executive Directors

Dr CHOW Yei Ching {Chairman)

Mr FUNG Pak Kwan (Managing Director)
Mr KUOK Hoi Sang

Mr KAN Ka Hen

Miss Lily CHOW

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr Shinichi YONEHARA
Mr WU King Cheong

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Ms Lily CHOW shall retire from office at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer herself for re-election. The
Independent Non-Executive Directors are subject to the same retirement requirements as the
Executive Directors.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Maessrs CHOW Yei Ching, FUNG Pak Kwan, KUOK Hoi Sang and KAN Ka Hon are interested in
certain contracts in that they are the Directors and/or have beneficial interests in Chevalier
International Holdings Limited (“CIHL"). Details of these contracts are more fully disclosed in the
section “Connected Transactions” below.

Save as aforementioned, no other contract of significance to which the Company or its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director had a
material interest subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

During the year, none of the Directors have an interest in any business constituting a competing
business to the Group.

Connected Transactions

The Group has from time to time conducted transactions with CIHL which is a “connected person”
for the purposes of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Stock Exchange had granted a waiver
on 2nd April, 1997 to the Company from strict compliance with the requirements stipulated in
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules on connected transactions. Pursuant to the waiver, details of the
following connected transactions which have been entered into between certain subsidiaries of
CIHL and the Group in the ordinary and usual course of business were not required to be disclosed
by press notice and/or circufar nor is the Company required tc obtain prior independent
shareholders’ approval on each occasion when they arise:

The following properties were feased to the Group by the wholly-owned subsidiaries of CIHL at
commercial rates:

Landlord Renting of property (usage) Rental for the year
HK$°000
Union Pear! Development Limited Portion of Chevalier 111

Commercial Centre (office)

Peak Gain Limited Portion of Chevalier 3,255
Engineering Service Centre
{office/warehouse)

Well Stamp Limited Portion of Jin Du Mansion (office) 28

Well Stamp Limited Portion of Dongshan Plaza (office) 94

During the year, rentals amounting to approximately HK$3.5 million was paid to CIHL Group.




Directors

Connected Transactions (Continued)

The Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company confirm that the aforesaid connected
transactions conducted by the Group during the year ended 31st March, 2004 were:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business;

(i on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable than terms available to/from
independent third parties;

(ily  fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the Company are concerned; and
(iv)  within the relevant amounts as stipulated under the relevant waiver.
Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities

As at 31st March, 2004, the interests and short positions of the Directors and the chief executives
of the Company in the share, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“the SFO"),
which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be recorded in the register
to be kept by the Company pursuant tc section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (“the Model Code") were as follows:

(@) Interests in the Company — Shares

Number of ordinary shares
Approximate

Personal Corporate percentage
Name of Director Capacity interests interests Total of interest
(%)
CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner and 6,815,854 86,994,933+ 93,810,787 54.75
Interest of controfled
corporation
FUNG Pak Kwan Beneficial owner 2,580,000 - 2,580,000 15
KUOK Hoi Sang Beneficial owner 2,400,000 - 2,400,000 14
KAN Ka Hon Reneficial owner 451,200 - 451,200 0.26

Shinichi YONEHARA Beneficial owner 600 - 600 0.00035
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities {Continued)
(@) Interests in the Company — Shares (Continued)

* Dr CHOW Yei Ching has notified the Company that under the SFO, he was deemed to be
interested in 86,994,933 shares of the Company which were held by CIHL as Dr Chow beneficiary
owned 140,669,359 shares in CIHL, representing approximately 50.49% of the issued share
capital of CIHL. Dr Chow was deemed to be interested in these shares under the SFO and these
shares were same as those shares described in “Substantial Shareholders’ interests in Securities”
below.

(b) Interests in Associated Corporations — Shares

Number of
ordinary shares
Approximate

Associated Personal percentage

Name of Director corporations Capacity interests Total of interest
(%)

CHOW Yei Ching CIHL Beneficial owner 140,669,359 140,669,359 50.49
FUNG Pak Kwan CIHL Beneficial owner 93,479 93,479 0.03
KUOK Hoi Sang CIHL Beneficial owner 98,216 98,216 0.04
KAN Ka Hon CIHL Beneficial owner 29,040 29,040 0.01
Shinichi YONEHARA  CIHL Beneficial owner 1,671 1,671 0.0008

Save as disclosed above and in “Share Option Schemes” below, as at 31st March, 2004, so far as is
known to the Directors and the chief executives of the Company, no other person has interest or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which he is taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFQ); or are required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the
register referred to therein, or are required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors

Share Option Schemes

The Company and CIHL have adopted share option schemes on 30th September, 1991 (“the Old
CiTL Scheme and Cld CIHL Scheme respectively”). These schemes have been expired on 29th
September, 2001 and no further options may te granted under the Old CiTL Scheme and Old CIHL
Scheme thereafter. Details of the outstanding options as at 31st March, 2004 which have been
granted under the share aption schemes of the Company and its associated corporation were as
follows:

(@) Interests in the Company - Share Options

Number of share options
Qutstanding
Exercise Balanceas  Exercised  Cancelled lapsed  asat3ist
Date of Period during which ~ price per at st during  during during March,
Name of Director grant options are exercisable option Apri, 2003 theyear theyear  the year 004
(H3)

(note) (note) fnote)
CHOW Yei Ching 17021999 30/06/2000 - 29/06/2003 23 1,400,000 - - 1400000 -
FUNG Pal Kwan 17121989 300062000 - 29/06/2003 232 1,310,000 - - 1310000 -
KUOK Hai Sang 121999 30/66/2000 - 291062003 13 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 -
KAN Ka Fon 1711211999 300672000 - 29/0672003 23 1,000,000 f - 999,999 -
Ly CHOW 1721999 300672000 - 291062003 IRl 1,000,000 - - 1000000 -

As at 31st March, 2004, all the outstanding options under the Old CiTL Scheme had been
lapsed on 29th June, 2003.
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Share Option Schemes (Continued)
(b) Interests in Associated Corporation — Share Options

Number of share options
Period Qutstanding
duringwhich  Exercise  Balanceas Exercised Cancelled  lapsed  Disposed  asat 3st
Assocated  Dateof  optionsare  priceper atfstAprl,  during  during  during  of during March,

Name of Director  corporation gant  exercisable  option 003 theyear theyear theyear  theyear 2004
(HK$)
(note) (note) [note)
CHOW Yei Ching (HL 17020988 30062000 - 24 16%0,000 - - - 1,680,000 -
29/06/2003
FUNG Pak Kwan CHU 17121989 300672000 - 2441070000 - - - 1070000 -
290612003
KUOK Hoi Sang (HU 177121999 30106/2000 - 244 1,070,000 - - - 1070000 -
290672003
KAN Ka Hon CHL 17121999 300672000 - 244 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 -
290062003

As at 31st March, 2004, there is no share options outstanding under the Old CIHL Scheme.

Note: The exercise price per option and the numbers of share options of the Company and CIHL subject
to the Old CiTL Scheme and the Old CIHL Scheme respectively have been adjusted for the five into
one share consolidation which became effective on 6th June, 2003.

A share option scheme of the Company ("the CiTL Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of
CIHL and shareholders of the Company at their respective 2002 Annual General Meetings held on
20th September, 2002. Another share option scheme of CIML (“the CIHL Scheme”) was also
approved by the shareholders of CIHL at the 2002 Annual General Meeting of CiHL held on 20th
September, 2002. The CiTL Scheme and the CIHL Scheme fully comply with Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules. As at 31st March, 2004, no share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the CiTL Scheme and the CIHL Scheme.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director offering for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Report of the Directors

Management Contracts

Apart from the management agreement entered into with CIHL Group as set out in note 29(a) to
the financial statements, no other contract of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was entered into or subsisted during the year.

Directors’ Biographies
Executive Directors

Dr CHOW Yei Ching, Chairman, aged 68, is the founder of Chevalier Group. Dr Chow is also the
Chairman and Managing Director of CIHL, a public listed company in Hong Kong and a substantial
shareholder of the Company. He is also a Non-Executive Director of Van Shung Chong Holdings
Limited, Television Broadcasts Limited and Shaw Brothers (Hong Kong) Limited. In 1995, Dr Chow
was awarded with an Honorary Doctor Degree in Business Administration by The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and an Honorary University Fellow by The University of Hong Kong. In 1996
and 1997, he was appointed as an Honorary Member of the Board of Directors by Nanjing
University and was conferred an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Laws by The University of Hong
Kong respectively. Dr Chow also serves actively in a number of educational advisory committees
and gives substantial support to the aforementioned two Universities in Hong Kong and The Hong
Kong University of Science & Technology in areas of researches and developments. He is also a
Consultative Professor of Zhejiang University and a Lecture Professor of Sichuan Union University in
the PRC. Dr Chow's enthusiasm in public services is evidenced in his appointment in 2001 as the
Vice Patron of The Community Chest in Hong Kong. He was also appointed as the Honorary
Consul of The Kingdom of Bahrain in Hong Kong in 2001. He also actively participates in various
professional bodies and associations on fraternal and Chinese affairs. To name a few, he is a
Standing Committee Member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, Shanghai,
the President of The Japan Society of Hong Kong and the Permanent Honorary President of the
National Taiwan University-HK Alumni Association, etc. In recognition of his contributions to local
and overseas societies alike, Dr Chow was awarded honorable decorations from Britain, Belgium,
France and Japan. Furthermore, Dr Chow was also awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star from the
Government of the HKSAR in 2004. He is the father of Miss Lily Chow, the Executive Director of the
Company. Dr Chow is a director of Chevalier (HK) Limited and Firstland Company Limited which are
the wholly-owned subsidiaries of CIHL and the substantial shareholders of the Company. They have
a discloseable interest in the capital of the Company under the SFO.

Mr FUNG Pzk Kwan, Managing Director, aged 52, joined Chevalier Group in 1974 and is a Director
of CIHL, a public listed company in Hong Kong and a substantial shareholder of the Company. He is
the Advisor of the executive committee of the Guangdong Federation of Industry & Commerce and
Guangdong Chamber of Commerce. Mr Fung is responsible for Chevalier Group's strategic
planning and management of operations of subsidiaries which focus on a wide range of voice and
data communication equipment and services, system integrated IT solutions as well as the sale of
business machines, computer systems and equipment, telephone systems and relevant after-sales
services. He also actively involves in the planning of investment and development projects,
environmental engineering, automobile and hotel business in North America of the Group. Mr Fung
is a director of Chevalier (HK) Limited and Firstland Company Limited which are the wholly-owned
subsidiaries of CIHL and the substantial shareholders of the Company. They have a discloseable
interest in the capital of the Company under the SFO.
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Directors’ Biographies (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr KUOK Hoi Sang, Director, aged 54, joined Chevalier Group in 1972 and is the Managing
Director of CIHL, a public listed company in Hong Kong and a substantial shareholder of the
Company. He is also the President of The Lift and Escalator Contractors Association in Hong Kong,
the Vice-Chairman of the Hong Kong - China Branch of The International Association of Elevator
Engineers and a Registered Lift and Escalator Engineer in Hong Kong. He is @ member of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, Guangzhou. Mr Kuok has extensive experience in
business development and is responsible for the strategic planning and management of the
operations of lifts and escalators, building construction, building materials and supplies, aluminium
works, electrical and mechanical services, civil engineering, property development as well as
investment projects of the Group. Mr Kuok is a director of Chevalier (HK) Limited and Firstland
Company Limited which are the wholly-owned subsidiaries of CIHL and the substantial shareholders
of the Company. They have a discloseable interest in the capital of the Company under the SFO.

Mr KAN Ka Hon, Director and Company Secretary, aged 53, joined Chevalier Group in 1986 and is
a Director and Company Secretary of CIHL, a public listed company in Hong Kong and a substantial
shareholder of the Company. He is also a Non-Executive Director of Victory City International
Holdings Limited and Asia Alliance Holdings Limited (formerly known as “i100 Limited”). He is
responsible for management of the Chevalier Group’s accounting and treasury, corporate finance,
investment, pension fund and company secretarial activities. Mr Kan holds a Bachelor Degree in
Science from The University of Hong Kong and is a fellow member of The Association of The
Chartered Certified Accountants in the U.K. and a member of The Hong Kong Society of
Accountants. Mr Kan is a director of Chevalier (HK) Limited and Firstland Company Limited which
are the wholly-owned subsidiaries of CIHL and the substantial shareholders of the Company. They
have a discloseable interest in the capital of the Company under the SFO.

Miss Lily CHOW, Director, aged 41, joined Chevalier Group in 1990. She is responsible for strategic
planning and business development of the Group. She is also a member of Guangdong Provincial
Committee of Chinese People’s Consultative Conference, Committee of Taiwan, Hong Kong,
Macau and Overseas of the Zhejing Provincial Committee of Chinese People’s Political Conference
and Shanghai Women's Federation Committee. She holds a Bachelor Degree and is the daughter of
Dr CHOW Yei Ching, the Chairman of the Company.
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anort of the Directors

Directors’ Biographies (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr Shinichi YONEHARA, aged 53, was appointed to the Board in 2001. He is a graduate of Keio
University, Japan. Mr Yonehara joined Mitsui & Co., Ltd in 1974 and retired in January 2001. He
was appointed General Manager for Machinery Division of Mitsui & Company (Hong Kong) Limited
from 1983 to 19392. Mr Yonehara is well-experienced in aircraft, telecommunications and iT
businesses.

Mr WU King Cheong, aged 53, was appointed to the Board in October, 2002. He is an Executive
Director of Lee Cheong Gold Dealers Limited. He is also a Councillor of the Legislative Council of
the HKSAR (Financial Services Constituency) and the Eastern District Council of the HKSAR, Vice
Chairman of the Chinese General Chamber of Commerce, Member of the Hong Kong Housing
Authority and Lord Wilson Heritage Trust - Board of Trustees as well as the Honorary Permanent
President of the Chinese Gold & Silver Exchange Society and the Hong Kong Stockbrokers
Association.

Retirement Schemes

The Company and its Hong Kong subsidiaries were participating companies in the Chevalier Group
Staff Provident Fund Scheme (“the Scheme”) as defined in the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance which is a defined contribution retirement scheme. The Scheme was granted exemption
from Mandatory Provident Fund regulations by the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority
and shalt not open to new members starting from 1st December, 2000. Certain of the Company’s
overseas subsidiaries contribute to their local government’s central pension plans for their
employees. Contributions to the Scheme are made by both the employers and the employees at
the rate of 3.5% to 16% on the employees’ salaries.

Pursuant to Government legislation, Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited was selected by the
Group as an alternative Mandatory Provident Fund ("MPF") service provider for employees of the
Group who join the Group from 1st December, 2000. The MPF is available to the employees aged
18 to 65 and with at least 60 days of service under the employment of the Group in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made by the Group at 5% based on the staff's relevant income at a maximum of
HK$20,000 per month. The benefits are required by law to be preserved until the retirement age of
65.

The Group's total contributions to these schemes charged to the consolidated income statement
during the year amounted to HK$3,682,000 against which the forfeited contributions amounting
to HK$569,000 have been deducted. There were forfeited contributions amounting to HK$13,000
available at the year end date for the reduction of future employer’s contributions.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities

As at 31 March 2004, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief executives of the Company,
the interests and short positions of the persons or corporations in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which have been disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO were as follows;

Approximate

Number of percentage

Substantial Shareholder shares held of interest
(%)

CHOW Yei Ching (Notes 1 and 3) 93,810,787 54.75
MIYAKAWA Michiko (Notes 2 and 3) 93,810,787 54.75
CIHL (Note 3) 86,994,933 50.77
Chevalier (HK) Limited  (“CHK") (Note 3) 13,471,200 7.86
Firstland Company Limited (“Firstland”) (Note 3) 13,471,200 7.86

Notes:

1. These shares were held by Dr Chow as (i) personal interests of 6,815,854, (ii) corporate interests of
86,994,933 in which Dr Chow was deemed to be interested in (i} under the SFO.

2. These shares were held by Dr Chow. Ms Miyakawa Michiko, the spouse of Dr Chow; is deemed to be
interested in the same parcel of 93,810,787 shares under Part XV of the SFO.

3. These shares of 13,471,200 were held by Firstland, a company incorporated in Hong Kong and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CHK. CHK is a company incorporated in Hong Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of CIHL. CIHL is a company incorporated in Bermuda. CHK, CIHL, Dr. Chow and his spouse were deemed
to be interested in 13,471,200 shares under Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March, 2004, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executives of the Company, no other person has interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations which were
reguired to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO and as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO, or, were, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company.
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Report of the Directors

Arrangement for Acquisition of Shares or Debentures

Except for the share option schemes adopted by the Company and its associated corporations and
the share options granted to certain Directors, at no time during the year was the Company or its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, which was established pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules,
comprising Messrs Shinichi YONEHARA and WU King Cheong, both the Independent Non-
Executive Directars of the Company, met twice in the year. During the meetings, the Audit
Committee has reviewed with the Management the Connected Transactions, interim and annual
reports of the Group, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, the auditing,
internal controls and financial reporting matters.

Corporate Governance

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied throughout the year with the guidelines
for the Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The Company has
adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of Public Float

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Board, the percentage of the Company’s share which are in the hands of the public exceeds
25% of the Company’s total number of issued shares.

Auditors

The financial statements for the year have been audited by Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
CHOW Yei Ching

Chairman

Hong Kong, 15th July, 2004
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Report of the Auditors

Deloitte.
BE)

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED
{Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 24 to 54 which have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which give a
true and fair view. In preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view, it is
fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

[t is our responsibility to form an independent opinicn based on our audit, on those financial
statements and to report our opinion to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant
to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the
Company and the Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain ali the information and explanations which
we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. In forming
our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group as at 31st March, 2004 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for
the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
15th July, 2004
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onsolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other operating income
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses
Profit (loss} from operations
Finance costs

Share of results of associates
Gain (loss) on discontinued operations
Profit (loss) bafore taxation

Taxation
Profit (loss) for the year
Dividend

Earnings (loss) per share
Basic

Diluted

Notes

2004 2003
HK$°000 HK$'000
670,583 687,903
(597,626) {604,595)

72,957 83,308
8,924 10,454
(52,642) (94,629)
(3,757) (5,863)
(1,979) (1,499)
23,503 (8,229)

(22) (68)
)] 1,927
1,016 (12,093)
24,420 (18,463)
(1.557) (4,334)
22,863 (22,797)
8,568 -
13.34 cents (13.30) cents
N/A N/A




Lonsolidated Balance Shee

As at 31st March, 2004
2004 2003
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assets
Investment properties 10 5,160 5,160
Property, plant and equipment 1 29,042 26,255
Interests in associates 13 2,239 9,618
Investments in securities 14 5,000 17,800
Fixed deposit 7,800 -
49,241 58,833
Current assets
Inventories 15 67,069 56,946
Properties for sale, at cost 1,135 1,135
Debtors, deposits and prepayments 16 77,075 111,864
Amount due from ultimate holding company 245 -
Amounts due from customers for contract work 17 438 1,244
Tax recoverable 487 472
Investments in securities 14 152,769 86,058
Bank balances and cash equivalents 124,486 149,033
423,704 406,752
Current liabilities
Creditors, deposits and accruals 18 66,315 66,384
Amount due to ultimate holding company - 6,290
Amounts due to customers for contract work 17 1,322 4,530
Bills payable 1,721 2,086
Deferred service income 18,664 19,525
Provision for taxation 633 2,277
Unsecured bank overdrafts 151 73
88,806 101,165
Net current assets 334,898 305,587
Total assets less current liabilities 384,139 364,420
Non-current liability
Deferred taxation 19 379 -
Minority interests 174 186
383,586 364,234
Capital and reserves
Share capital 20 85,678 85,678
Reserves 21 297,908 278,556
383,586 364,234
The financial statements on pages 24 to 54 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 15th
July, 2004 and are signed on its behalf by:
FUNG Pak Kwan KUOK Hoi Sang
Director Director
T




As at 31st March, 2004

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Interests in subsidiaries
Investments in securities

Current assets
Debtors, deposits and prepayments
Amount due from ultimate holding company
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Investments in securities
Bank balances and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Creditors, deposits and accruals
Amount due to ultimate holding company
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Net current assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

FUNG Pak Kwan
Director

Notes

11
12
14

14

20
21

2004 2003
HK$ 000 HK$'000
151 189
100,233 96,729
- 17,800
100,384 114,718
494 1,797

245 -
241,044 100,258
- 72,214
32,185 110,333
273,968 284,603
4,361 3,858

- 6,290
40,950 59,965
45,311 70,113
228,657 214,490
329,041 329,208
85,678 85,678
243,363 243,530
329,041 329,208

KUOK Hoi Sang
Director




Total equity at beginning of the year
Surplus on revaluation of properties
Exchange difference arising on translation of financial

statements of overseas subsidiaries

{Loss) gains not recognised in the consolidated income statement

Profit (loss) for the year
Dividend paid

Total equity at end of the year

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

2004 2003
HK$°000 HK$'000
364,234 384,868
1,238 392
(1,322) 1,771
(84) 2,163
22,863 (22,797)
(3,427) -
383,586 364,234




L onsolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit (loss) before taxation 24,420 (18,463)
Adjustments for:
Share of results of associates 77 (1,927)
Interest income (9,783) (5,999)
Interest expenses 22 68
Depreciation 4,803 4,844
Net realised and unrealised holding (gain) loss on
investments in securities (6,595) 1,431
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 58 6,091
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment - 1,218
(Surplus) deficit on revaluation of properties (828) 78
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 12,174 (12,659)
(Increase) decrease in inventories (8,652) 14,384
Decrease (increase) in debtors, deposits and prepayments 37,094 (2,305)
Decrease in amounts due from customers for contract work 806 324
Increase in investments in securities (47,316) (16,562)
(Decrease) increase in bills payable (365) 1,509
Decrease in creditors, deposits and accruals (713) (23,838)
(Decrease) increase in amounts due to customers for contract work (3,208) 78
{Decrease) increase in deferred service income (869) 536
Exchange difference (6,323) 1,014
Cash used in operations (17,372) (37,519)
Profits tax paid (3,646) (1,814)
Profits tax refunded 809 725
Interest paid (22) (68)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (20,231) (38,676)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 9,253 6,236
Dividend received from an associate - 10,386
Repayment from an associate 331 219
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (6,195) (6,595)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,572 957
Placing of fixed deposit (7.800) -
Disposal of an associate 6,971 -
Disposal of a subsidiary - 1,058
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 4,132 12,261
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid (3,427) -
(Repaymerts to) advances from ultimate holding company (6,535) 4,834
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (9,962) 4,834
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (26,061) (21,581)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 148,960 170,240
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates 1,436 301
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 124,335 148,960
Being:
Bank balances and cash equivalents 124,486 149,033
Bank overdrafts (151) (73)
124,335 148,960
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GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company’s ultimate holding
company is Chevalier international Holdings Limited (“CIHL"), a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda
and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and investment in securities. Details of the principal
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in pages 53 and 54. During the year, the Group has discontinued the
telecommunication services and retailing.

ADOPTION OF STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE

In the current year, the Group has adopted Statement of Standard Accounting Practice ("SSAP”) 12 (Revised)
“Income Taxes” issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants ("HKSA”). The principal effect of the
implementation of SSAP 12 (Revised) is in relation to deferred tax. SSAP 12 (Revised) requires the adoption of a
balance sheet liability method, whereby deferred tax is recognised in respect of all temporary differences between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit, with limited exceptions. In the absence of any specific transitional requirements
in SSAP 12 (Revised), the new accounting policy has been applied retrospectively. The adoption of the revised
accounting policy has had no material effect on the results for the current or prior accounting periods. Accordingly,
no prior period adjustment has been required.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified for the revaluation
of certain properties and investments in securities and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below:

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31st March each year and also incorporate the Group's interests in associates on the basis set
out in (d) below.

The results of subsidiaries and associates acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate.

(b) Goodwill/negative goodwill on consolidation

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest
in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary or associate. Negative goodwill
represents the excess of the Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a
subsidiary or associate at the date of acquisition over the cost of acguisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1st April, 2001 continues to be held in reserves, and will be
charged to the income statement at the time of disposal of the relevant subsidiary or associate, or at such
time as the goodwill is determined to be impaired.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after st April, 2001 is capitalised and amortised on a straight-line
basis over its estimated useful life. Goodwill arising on acquisition of an associate is included within the
carrying amount of the associate. Goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiaries is presented separately in
the balance sheet.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1st April, 2001 continues to be held in reserves and will
be credited to income statement at the time of disposal of the relevant subsidiary or associate.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions after 1st April, 2001 is presented as deduction from assets and
will be released to income based on an analysis of the circumstances from which the balance resulted.
Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is deducted from the carrying value of the
associate. Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is presented separately in the balance
sheet as a deduction from assets.

(¢) Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s balance sheet at cost less any identified impairment
loss. :

For the year ended 31§t Mafch, 2004




Note

o the Financial Statements

o Fbr thé y'ear'ended 31§t March, 2004

3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(d)

(e)

®

Interests in associates

The consolidated income statement inctudes the Group's share of the post-acquisition results of its associates
for the year. In the consolidated balance sheet, interests in associates are stated at the Group's share of the
net assets of the associates.

Investment properties

Investment properties are completed properties which are held for their investment potential, any rental
income being negotiated at arm’s length.

Investment properties are stated at their open market value and are revalued annually by independent
professional valuers. Any revaluation increase or decrease arising on the revaluation of investment properties
is credited or charged to the investment property revaluation reserve unless the balance of this reserve is
insufficient to cover a revaluation decrease, in which case the excess of the revaluation decrease over the
balance of the investment property revaluation reserve is charged to the income statement. Where a
decrease has previously been charged to the income statement and a revaluation increase subsequently
arises, this increase is credited to the income statement to the extent of the decrease previously charged.

On disposal of an investment property, the balance on the investment property revaluation reserve attributable
to that property is transferred to the income statement.

No depreciation is provided on investment properties except where the unexpired term of the relevant
lease is 20 years or less,

Property, plant and equipment
0] Properties

Properties held for own use are stated at their revalued amount, being the fair value on the basis of
their existing use at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
subsequent impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such that the
carrying amount does not differ materially from that would be determined using fair values at the
balance sheet date. Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of such properties is credited to the
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset
previously recognised as an expense, in which case the increase is credited to the income statement to
the extent of the decrease previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount arising on the
revaluation of a property is dealt with as an expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on
the revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that property. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of a revalued property, the attributable revaluation surplus is transferred to retained profits.

No depreciation is provided on freehold land. Depreciation is provided on leasehold land over the
remaining terms of the respective leases. Depreciation is provided on the cost of the buildings on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 20 to 50 years or the remaining terms of the
respective leases, whichever is the shorter.

(i) Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The
cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives
after taking into account their estimated residual value, on the reducing balance basis, at the following
rates per annum:

Initial charge Annual

upon purchase charge

Computer equipment 20% 40%
Others 20% 20%

Assets held for leasing are depreciated over the shorter of the term of the leases or at an annual rate
of 20% on the cost of the assets.

The gain or loss arising from the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income
statement.




For the year ended 31st March, 2004

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(9)

(h)

(i)

)

(k)

Properties for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises the cost of
acguisition of properties and other direct costs. Net realisable value is estimated by management based on
prevailing market conditions or when a binding sales agreement is executed, by reference to the agreed
selling prices.

Inventories

Inventories represent general merchandise and consumable stores. General merchandise are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value whereas consumable stores are stated at cost less allowance. Cost is
calculated using weighted average method.

Investments in securities

Investments in securities are recognised on a trade-date basis and are initially measured at cost. At subsequent
reporting dates, debt securities that the Group has the expressed intention and ability to hold to maturity
{held-to-maturity debt securities) are measured at amortised cost less any impairment loss recognised to
reflect irrecoverable amounts. The annual amortisation of any discount or premium on the acquisition of a
held-to-maturity security is aggregated with other investment income receivable over the term of the
instrument so that the revenue recognised in each period represents a constant yield on the investment.

investments other than held-to-maturity debt securities are classified as investment securities and other
investments.

Investment securities, which are securities held for an identified long-term strategic purpose, are measured
at subsequent reporting dates at cost, as reduced by any impairment loss that is other than temporary.

Other investments are measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses included in income statement
for the period.

Installation contracts

When the outcome of an installation contract can be estimated reliably, contract costs are charged to the
income statement by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet
date, as measured by the value of work carried out during the year.

When the outcome of an installation contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

When itis probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.

Contracts in progress are recorded in the balance sheet at the contract costs incurred plus recognised
profits less recognised losses and progress billings, and are presented in the balance sheet as “amounts
due from customers for contract work” (as an asset) or “amounts due to customers for contract work” (as
a liability), where applicable. Amounts received before the related work is performed are included in the
balance sheet as a liability. Amounts billed for work performed on a contract but not yet paid by the
custorers are included in the balance sheet under " debtors, deposits and prepayments”.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. iImpairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated
as revaluation decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that other standard.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2004

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

0

(m)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Revenue recognition

Income from sale of goods is recognised when goods are delivered and title of the goods has passed to the
customer. Revenue is arrived at after deduction of any sales returns and discounts.

income from rendering of services is recognised at the time when services are rendered. Receipts in advance
of provision of services are accounted for as deferred service income.,

When the outcome of an installation contract can be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised using the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the value of work carried out during the
period. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that they
have been agreed with the customer. When the outcome of an installation contract cannot be estimated
reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the interest rate
applicable.

income from sale of securities is recognised on a trade-date basis.

Rental income and other earnings under operating leases are recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the respective lease.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have
been established.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of the assets remain with the lessors are
accounted for as operating leases. Payments on assets leased by the Group and income on property, plant
and equipment of the Group leased to third parties are dealt with in the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the terms of the relevant lease.

Retirement benefit costs

The retirement benefit costs charged in the income statement represent the contributions paid and payable
in respect of the current year to the Group's defined contribution schemes.

Foreign currency translation

The accounting records of the Group, other than those subsidiaries not operating in Hong Kong, are
maintained in Hong Kong dollars. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies during the year are
translated at the rates of exchange ruling on the dates of transactions or on the contracted settlement
date. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are re-
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the rates of exchange ruling on that date. Profits and losses arising on
axchange are dealt with in the income statement.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries and associates operating outside Hong Kong
are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as
2quity and transferred to exchange fluctuation reserve. Such translation differences are recognised as
income or as expenses in the year in which the subsidiary or associate is disposed of.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit
reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years, and it further excludes income statement items that are never taxable or deductible.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill
(or negative goodwill) or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other asset
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2004

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
(p) Taxation - continued
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it
relates items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in
equity.
(q) Cash equivalents
Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
4. TURNOVER
Turnover represents the net amount received and recelvable for goods sold, provision of services by the Group
and investment income. An analysis of the Group's turnover by business and geographical segment is set out in
note 22.
5. GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The current year’s credit mainly represents over-accrual of cost made in last year on termination of the Group's
operations in trading of general merchandise and retailing of telecommunication equipment and provision of
telecommunication agency services. Details of the overprovision and loss incurred in last year are as follows:

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000

Over-accrual (accrual) for lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases and related outgoings 645 (1,927)
Over-accrual (accrual) of staff redundancy cost 408 (3,264)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - (5,425)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment - {1,218)
Loss in value of inventories (37) (259)
1,016 (12,093)

e — e e . o . . L e o - . e~ P




For the year ended 31st March, 2004

5. GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - continued

Details of the Group's discontinued operations are as follows:

(@) In September 2002, the board of directors of the Company determined to cease its retailing of
telecommunication equipment and provision of telecommunication agency services which were operated
in Hong Kong. The operations were ceased in May 2003. Total loss arising from the discontinuance of the
operations amounted to HK$8,030,000. An over- accruals of the retail outlets closure costs of HK$948,000
made in prior year was credited to the current year's income statement (2003: loss of HK$8,978,000).

The results of the operations for the current year, and the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of
the retailing of telecommunication equipment and provision of telecommunication agency services business
which have been included in the consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$'000

Turnover 994 73,893
Dther operating income 3,180 8,394
Dperating costs (1,394) {(90,861)
Gain (loss) from operations 2,780 (8,574)
Total assets 2,492 11,395
Total liabilities (2,853) (9,855)

During the year, the retailing of telecommunication equipment and provision of telecommunication agency
services business contributed HK$ 4,504,000 (2003: used up HK$5,840,000) to the Group's net operating
rash flows, contributed HK$ 159,000 (2003: used up HK$1,112,000) in respect of investing activities and
used up HK$ 4,877,000 (2003: contributed HK$7,040,000) in respect of financing activities.

(by  During the last financial year, the Group had ceased trading of general merchandise in Hong Kong by
closing down all its retail outlets. Loss arising from the discontinuance of the operation amounted to
HK$3,047,000. An over-accruals of the retail outlet closure costs of HK$68,000 made in prior year was
credited to the current year's income statement (2003: loss of HK$3,115,000).

The results of the operations for the last period and the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the
trading of general merchandise business included in the consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

2004 2003

HK$'000 HK$'000

Turnover - 14,159
Other operating income - 1,690
Operating costs - (20,901)
Loss from operations - (5,052)
Total assets 27 1,287
Total liabilities (992) (3,995)

During the year, the trading of general merchandise used up HK$1,203,000 (2003: HK$2,195,000) of the
Group’s net operating cash flows and contributed HK$1,202,000 (2003: HK$1,765,000) in respect of
financing activities. The operation also contributed HK$23,000 in respect of investing activities during last
year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

6. PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit (Loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging:
Auditors’ remuneration
Current year 889 1,253
Overprovision for prior year (288) -
601 1,253
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 4,803 4,844
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 58 6,091
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment - 1,218
Operating lease payments in respect of renting of premises 10,592 28,754
Staff costs (note) 80,392 104,221
Net realised and unrealised holding loss on
investments in securities - 1,431
Interest on bank overdrafts repayable within five years 22 68
Deficit on revaluation of properties for own use - 198
and crediting:
Gross rental income from properties of HK$586,000
(2003: HK$657,000) less outgoings 420 488
Gross earnings from leasing of assets other than properties
of HK$4,051,000 (2003: HK$1,999,000) fess cutgoings 1,778 1,260
Net realised and unrealised holding gain on
investments in securities 6,595 -
Interest income from bank and other deposits 3,035 4,838
Interest income from debt securities 6,748 1,161
Exchange gain 4,035 2,572
Surplus on revaluation of
investment properties - 120
properties for own use 828 -
Note: Details of directors” emoluments included in staff costs are disclosed in note 23. Staff costs include an amount of
HK$1,056,000 (2003: HK$3,796,000) in respect of staff redundancy payments.
7. TAXATION

Current taxation
Company and subsidiaries
Hong Kong
Qverseas

Share of taxation attributable to associates
Hong Kong

Deferred taxation
Hong Kong

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 17.5% {2003: 16%) on the estimated assessable
profits less available tax relief for losses brought forward of each individual company comprising the Group. The
Hong Kong Profits Tax rate was increased from 16% to 17.5% with effect from the year of assessment 2003/
2004. The effect of this increase has been reflected in the calculation of current and deferred tax balance as at

31st March, 2004,

Provision for overseas taxation is calculated based on the rates applicable to the relevant local legislation on the

estimated assessable profits.

2004 2003
HKS$'000 HK$'000
748 1,142

430 2,842
1,178 3,984

- 350

379 -
1,557 4,334




For the year ended 31st March, 2004

7. TAXATION - continued

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit {loss) per the income statement as follows:

2004 2003
HK$ 000 HK$'000
Profit (loss) before taxation 24,420 (18,463)
Less: Share of results of associates 77 (1,927)
24,497 (20,390)
Tax at the domestic income tax
rate of 17.5% (2003: 16%) (note) 4,287 (3,262)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose 356 857
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose (2,192) (1,623)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 1,282 6,566
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised (3,092) (139)
Tax effect on deferred tax assets not recognised 868 610
Effect of different tax rates of
subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions 195 1,231
Others (147) (256)
Tax expenses of the Company and subsidiaries for the year 1,557 3,984

Note: The domestic tax rate in the jurisdiction where the operation of the Group fs substantially based is used.

8. DIVIDEND

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interim dividend paid
HK$9.02 (2003: nil) per share on 171,355,871 shares 3,427 -
Proposed final dividend
HK$0.03 (2003: nil) per share on 171,355,871 shares 5,141 -
8,568 -

9. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated based on the profit for the year of HK$22,863,000 (2003: loss of
HK$22,797,000) and on the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 171,355,871 (2003: 171,355,870)
in issue during the year. The weighted average number of shares has been adjusted for the consolidation of every
five of the Company’s ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each into one ordinary share of HK$0.50 in June 2003.

No diluted earnings per share for the year has been presented because the exercise price of the Company’s
options was higher than the average market price for shares. No diluted loss per share is presented for last year
as the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options would result in a decrease in net loss per share.

10. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

THE GROUP
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
Properties situated in the Mainland China,
held under medium-term leases 5,160 5,160

Investment properties were revalued on an open market value basis on 31st March, 2004 by independent
professional valuers, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited.

Gross rental income derived from renting of investment properties under operating leases during the year amounted
to HK$419,000 (2003: HK$468,000).




For the year ended 31st March, 2004

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Properties for own use
Hong Kong Overseas The Mainlend China Furniture, fixtures,
Transmitters office equipment
under under under  andtele-  Machinery and motor vehidles
medium- short- under  medium- communiations  tools and for for
term lease frechold  termlease  long-lease  termlease  equipment  equipment OWN Use fease Total

HKS'000 HKS 000 HA000 HKS000 HR§000 HK§000 FK§'000 HKS000 He3000 HKY00

THE GROUP

COST OR VALUATION

At 1st Apiil, 2003 4450 6,985 29 1,690 1,710 0 14557 19,380 4900 54,469
Exchange adjustments - o % - - - 37 541 8 1n

Additions - - - - - - 569 1,059 4547 6,19
Disposas - - - - - {1 {2.505) (4,700} (1.975) (9.351)
Surplus (deficit) on revaluation 350 969 17 (10) - - - - - 1426

At 315t March, 2004 4800 8,565 437 1,680 1710 13t 13008 16,480 7700 54,511

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Attt April, 2003 - - - - - m 11510 15438 1044 8214
Exchange adjustments - - - - - - bie 464 8 &

Charge for the year 101 28 119 i 123 b 1333 1,139 164 4803

Eliminated on disposals - - - - - (193) {2341 (8.3%) (822) {77
Eliminated on revaluation {103 (263) {19 (29 ) - - - - (640
At 315t March, 2004 - - - - - 93 10,785 12,64 1949 15,469

NET BOOK VALUES

At 31st March, 2004 4800 8565 437 1680 1,710 i 23 3838 5,754 108

At 315t March, 2003 4450 5,985 295 1690 1,710 80 3047 414 385% 16,25

An analysis of cost or valuation of the praperty, plant and equipment is as follows:

At cost - - - - 13t 13,008 16,480 7,700 3131
At 2004 professional valuation 4800 8565 437 1680 thl - - - - 17,192

4,800 8,565 437 1680 1710 131 13,008 16,480 7,700 51

Properties were revalued on an open market value basis on 31st March, 2004 based on existing use by independent
professional valuers. Properties in Hong Kong were revalued by Messrs. Knight Frank. Overseas properties were
revalued by Brooke Real Estate Limited. Properties in the Mainland China were revalued by DTZ Debenham Tie
Leung Limited.

Had these properties been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying amount at 31st March,
2004 would have been HK$22,286,000 (2003: HK$23,026,000).




For the year ended 31st Mérch, 2004

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - continued

12.

THE COMPANY

MOTOR VEHICLE AT COST
At 1st April, 2003 and 31st March, 2004

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 1st April, 2003
Charge for the year

At 31st March, 2004

NET BOOK VALUES
At 3157 March, 2004

At 31s7 March, 2003

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

HK$'000

348

159

197

151

ll

189

13.

Unlisted shares, at cost less impairment loss
Amounts due from subsidiaries, less allowances

THE COMPANY

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
57,951 57,409
42,282 39,320
100,233 96,729

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries as at 31st March, 2004 are set out on pages 53 and 54.

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length and therefore,

the subsidiaries as set out are those that principally affect the results or assets of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the year.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATE

Share of net assets
Amount due from an associate

THE COMPANY

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
24 7,072
2,215 2,546
2,239 9,618




13. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES - continued

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

14.

Particulars of the associate Guangzhou Chevalier iTech Limited, which was incorporated and is operating in the

Mainland China are as follows:

Form of business structure:
Effective % of registered capital

held by the subsidiary:
Principal activities:

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

Corporate

24%
Trading of office equipment and
provision of maintenance service

Held to maturity securities:
Debt securities, unlisted

Investment securities:
Equity securities, unlisted

Other investments:

Equity securities, listed in Hong Kong
Equity securities, unlisted

Debt securities, listed overseas

Debt securities, unlisted

Mutual fund, unlisted

Market value of listed securities
equity securities
debt securities

Carrying value analysed for
reporting purposes are:
Non-current
Current

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 17,800 - 17,800
5,000 - - -
416 - - -
2,976 995 - -
5,969 - - -
108,054 53,015 - 40,166
35,354 32,048 - 32,048
157,769 103,858 - 90,014
416 - - -
5.969 - - -
6,385 - - -
5,000 17,800 - 17,800
152,769 86,058 - 72,214
157,769 103,858 - 90,014




Statements

15. INVENTORIES

THE GROUP
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
Inventories held for resale . 63,455 53,000
Consumable stores 3,614 3,946
67,069 56,946

Included in the above are inventories held for resale of HK$8,842,000 (2003: HK$7,611,000) carried at net
realisable value.

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year was HK$381,115,000 (2003: HK$499,233,000).

16. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments are trade debtors of HK$56,650,000 (2003: HK$72,201,000). An
aged analysis of trade debtors as at 31st March, 2004 is as follows:

THE GROUP
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
0 - 60 days 50,455 63,469
61 - 90 days 3,298 3,389
Over 90 days 2,897 5,343
56,650 72,201

The Group has established different credit policies for customers in each of its core business. The average credit
period granted for trade debtors was 60 days.




17. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK

For the year ended 31st March, 2004

Contracts in progress at the balance sheet date:

Contract costs incurred
Recognised profits less losses

Progress billings

Represented by:

Amounts due from customers included in current assets
Amounts due to customers included in current liabilities

THE GROUP

2004 2003

HK$'000 HK$'000

68,151 39,538
(6,633) (7,052)

61,518 32,486
(62,402) (35,772)
(884) (3,286)

438 1,244
(1,322) (4,530)
(884) (3,286)

At 31st March, 2004, retentions held by customers for contract work amounted to HK$4,909,000 (2003:
HK$3,637,000). No advance payments were received from customers for contract work.

18. CREDITORS, DEPOSITS AND ACCRUALS
included in creditors, deposits and accruals are trade creditors of HK$28,613,000 (2003: HK$21,053,000). An
aged analysis of the trade creditors as at 31st March, 2004 is as follows:
THE GROUP
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
0 - 60 days 26,739 15,289
61 - 90 days - 969
Over 90 days 1.874 4,795
28,613 21,053
19. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and (assets) recognised and movements thereon during the

year:

Accelerated

tax Tax
depreciation losses Others Total
HK3$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April 2002 and 2003 - - - -
Charge (credit) to income for the year 536 (107) (50) 379
At 31 March 2004 536 (107) (50) 379




Notes to the Financial Statements

For the yéar ended 31st MaFch, 2004

19. DEFERRED TAXATION - continued

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining unused tax losses of HK$495,771,000
(2003: HK$5086,113,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses
are losses of HK$2,359,000 (2003: nil) that will expire in 2009. Cther losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had deductible temporary difference of HK$36,746,000 (2003:
HK$30,702,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary difference
as it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be

utilised.

20. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
240,000,000 (2003: 1,200,000,000) ordinary shares
of HK$ 0.50 (2003: HK$ 0.10) each

Issued and fully paid:
171,355,871 (2003: 856,779,352) ordinary shares
of HK$ 0.50 (2003: HK$ 0.10) each

On 13th May, 2003, 3 shares of HK$0.10 each were allotted at HK$0.464 on exercise of share options.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at a special general meeting of the shareholders of the Company on Sth
June, 2003, every five issued and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each are consolidated into one ordinary

share ¢f HK$0.50.

Details of the share option scheme of the Company and the ultimate holding company are set out in note 27.

21. RESERVES

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
120,000 120,000
85,678 85,678

Properties
Capital  forownuse  Exchange
Share Copital  redemption  revaluation  fluctuation  Dividend  Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THE GROUP
At 15t Apri, 2002 223,434 18231 14 113 587 - 55,790 293,190
Surplus on revaluation

of properties - - - 392 - - - 392
Exchange d fference on translation

of financial statements of

overseas subsidfaries - - - - 17N - 1m
et loss for the year - - - - - - (22,797} (22,797}
At 315t March, 2003 203,434 18,231 14 1526 238 32,993 278,556
Surplus on revaluation

of properties - - - 1238 - - - 1238
Exchange difference on translation

of financial statements of

overseas subsidiaries - - - - (1322} - - (1322)
Net profit for the year - - - - - - 22,863 21,863
Dividend - - - - - 5,141 (8,568) 3427
At 315t March, 2004 M 18,231 14 2,764 1036 5141 47,288 297,908




Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st Mar{:H, 2004

21. RESERVES - continued

Notes:

(i) Reserves of the Group at the balance sheet date includes the Group’s share of the post-acquisition loss sustained by an
associate amounting to HK$79,000 (2003: profit of HK$816,000).

(i) The capital reserve includes amounts of HK$27,000 (2003: HK$27,000) goodwill and HK$198,000 (2003: HK$198,000)
negative goodwill on consolidation.

Capital
Share  Contributed  redemption Dividend Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve profits Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
THE COMPANY
At 1st April, 2002 223,434 6,226 14 - 21,288 250,962
Net loss for the year - - - - (7.432) (7.432)
At 31st March, 2003 223434 6,226 14 - 13,856 243,530
Net profit for the year - - - - 3,260 3,260
Dividend - - - 5,141 (8,568) (3,427)

At 315t March, 2004 223,434 6,226 14 5,141 8,548 243,363

Notes:

(a) Contributed surplus represents the difference between the value of total net assets of subsidiaries acquired and the nominal
amount of the Company’s shares issued for the re-organisation in 1989, less dividends paid out of the contributed surplus
subsequently. Under the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is
available for distribution to sharehotders.

(b) As at 31st March, 2004, the Company's reserves available for distribution to shareholders amounted to HK$19,915,000 (2003:
HK$20,082,000).
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22. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into four operating divisions. These divisions are the
basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information.

During the year ended 31st March, 2004, the Group had discontinued its retailing of telecommunication equipment
and provision of telecommunication agency services business as disclosed in note 5. The Group had also discontinued
its trading of general merchandise business in the year ended 31 March 2003.

Segment information about these businesses is presented below.

TURNOVER AND RESULTS

Year ended 31st March, 2004

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
Network Telecom-
Computer  solution&  Technical munication
and  telecom- and Investment General services
business munication maintenance in securities merchandise and
machines systems services  and others trading retailing
HK$'000 HK$'000 Hk$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TURNOVER
Total sales 433,462 121,109 46,560 124,477 - 1818 727,426
Inter-segrrent sales (48,723) (1,850) (5,446) - - (824) (56,843)
External scles 384,739 119,259 41,114 124,477 - 994 670,583
RESULTS
Segment rasults 720 (1,668) 2,17 13,344 - 2,780 17,893
Interest income 3,035
Unallocated corporate
income 4,152
Unallocated corporate expenses (1,577)
Profit from operations 23,503
Finance costs (22)
Share of results of an associate m - - - - - m
Gain on discontinued operations - - - - 68 948 1,016
Profit before taxation 24,420
Taxation (1,557)
Net profit for the year 22,863
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22. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

TURNOVER AND RESULTS

Year ended 31st March, 2003

TURNOVER
Total sales
Inter-segment sales

External sales

RESULTS
Segment results

Interest income
Unallocated corporate expenses

Loss from operations
Finance costs

Share of results of assaciates
Loss on discontinued operations

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Net loss for the year

Note: Inter-segment sales are charged at prices determined by management with reference to market prices.

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
Network Telecom-
Computer  solution&  Technical munication
and telecom- and  Investment General services
business  munication maintenance  in securities  merchandise and
machines systems services  and others trading retaifing
HK$'000 HK$ 000 Hk$'000 HK$-000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
477771 138,816 44,214 12,989 14,443 79,826 768,059
(57.097) {11,298) (5,544) - (284) (5,933) (80,156
420674 127518 38,670 12,989 14,159 73,893 637,903
3121 (2,856) 1,989 (2,458) (5,053) (8,612) {13,869)
5,999
{359)
(8,229)
(68)
1927 - - - - - 1,927
- - - - {3,115) (8,978) (12,093)
(18,463)
{4,334)
(22,797)
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22. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

BALANCE SHEET

As at 31st March, 2004

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total

Network Telecom-

Computer  solution&  Technical munication

and telecom- and Investment General services

business munication maintenance in securities merchandise and

machines systems services  and others trading retailing
HK$'000 HK$'000 Hk$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ASSETS

Segrnent assets 112,672 4229 10,872 159,530 27 2492 327,885
Interests in an associate 2,239 - - - - - 2,239
Unallocated corporate assets 142,821
Consolidated total assets 472,945
LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities 40,470 28,068 5711 - 992 2,853 78,094
Unallocated corporate liabilities 11,091
Consolidated total fiabilities 89,185

As at 31st March, 2003

Continuing operations Discontinued aperations Total
Network Telecom-
solution & Technical munication
Computer telecom- and  Investment General services
and business  munication maintenance  in securities  merchandise and
machines systems sevices  and others trading retailing

HK$'000 HK$000 Hk$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ASSETS

Segment assets 114,338 53,730 11,555 103,858 1,287 11,395 296,163
Interests in associates 9618 - - - - - 9,618
Unallocated corporate assets 159,804
Consolidated total assets 465,585
LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities 17,954 34,913 16,756 13 3,995 9,855 83,486
Unallocated corporate liabilities 17679

Consolidated total liabilities 101,165
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22. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

OTHER INFORMATION
Year ended 31st March, 2004

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
Network Telecom-
Computer  solution&  Technical munication
and  telecom- and Investment General services
business munication maintenance in securities merchandise and
machines systems services  and others trading retailing
HK$'000 HKS'000 Hk$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Capital additions 4,558 486 226 925 - - 6,195
Depreciation 2,262 896 969 676 - - 4,803
Surplus on revaluation of properties - - - 828 - - 828
Year ended 31st March, 2003
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
Network Telecom-
Computer  solution & Technical munication
and telecom- and  Investment General senvices
business  munication maintenance  in securities  merchandise and
machines systems services  and others trading retalling
HK§'000 HK$'000 Hk$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Capital additions 1977 1,465 22 2,951 6 174 6,595
Depreciation 1,584 1,210 906 632 - 512 4,844
Impairment loss
property, plant and equipment - - - - - 1,218 1,218
Deficit on revaluation
of properties - - - 78 - - 78

Geographical segments

The Group’s operations in sales of computer and business machines and telecommunication systems, provision
of technical and maintenance services and network solution services are carried out in Hong Kong and Thailand.
The discontinued operations, retailing of telecommunication equipment and provision of telecommunication
agency services and trading of general merchandise were carried out in Hong Kong. The following table provides
an analysis of the Group’s turnover by geographical market:

Turnover by geographical market

2004 2003
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
Hong Kong 516,689 77 511,653 74
Thailand 124,176 19 123,699 18
Others 29,718 4 52,551 8
670,583 100 687,903 100

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of segment assets and additions to property, plant and
equipment analysed by the geographical area in which the assets are located:

Carrying amounts of segment assets Additions to property, plant and equipment

2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$'000 % | HK3$'000 % | HK$'000 % | HK3'000 %
Hong Kong 393,357 83| 380733 82 3,182 51 3,215 49
Thailand 65,042 14 66,483 14 3,003 48 3,245 49
Others 14,546 3 18,369 4 10 1 135 2
472,945 100 | 465,585 100 6,195 100 6,595 100
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For the year ended 31st March, 2004

23. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details of the emoluments paid to the Directors of the Company are as follows:

Fees
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
240 238

- 505

- 25

240 768

Except for the directors’ fees of HK$240,000 (2003: HK$238,000) paid to the Independent Non-executive Directors,
no other emoluments were paid or are payable to the Independent Non-executive Directors during the two years

ended 37st March, 2004,

The emoluments of the Directors fall within the following bands:

Number of directors

Bands

Nil - HK$1,000,000

2004

7

2003

8

In addition to the directors’ emoluments disclosed above, four (2003 four) directors received remuneration
totalling HK$15,259,000 (2003: HK$16,173,000) from the Company's ultimate holding company in respect of
their services to the ultimate holding company and its subsidiaries including the Group.

The amounts paid by the ultimate holding company have not been allocated between the services of the directors
as directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, and their services to the ultimate holding company and its other

subsidiaries.

The emoluments of the five (2003: five) highest paid individuals were as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

2004 2003
HK$000 HK$°000
3,354 3,943
215 200
3,569 4,143

The emoluments of these five (2003: five) highest paid individuals fall within the following bands:

Number of individuals

Bands

Nil - HK$ 1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000

2004

5

2003

3
2
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24, CHARGE OF ASSETS

At 31st March, 2004, freehold properties with an aggregate carrying value of HK$ 8,070,000 (2003: HK$6,603,000)
were mortgaged to secure general banking facilities granted to an overseas subsidiary.

25. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31st March, 2004, the Company had contingent liabilities in respect of:

{0 guarantees issued for banking facilities extended to its subsidiaries amounting to HK$3,102,000 (2003:
HK$5,421,000).

(i) guarantees issued for performance under contracts and rendering of services of certain subsidiaries amounting
to HK$2,053,000 (2003: HK$1,405,000)

26. OPERATING LEASE

(@) The Group as lessee

At 31st March, 2004, the Group and the Company had commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of renting of premises which fall due as follows:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Within one year 3,356 6,287 92 123
In the second to fifth year
inclusive - 3,231 - 92
3,356 9,518 92 215

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for an average term of 2 years.
(b) The Group as lessor
All the investment properties were leased out for a period of one year and the Group did not have any

renewal options given to the lessees. The future minimum lease payments receivable by the Group within
one year under non-cancellable operating leases amounted to HK$135,000 (2003: HK$406,000).
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(a)

(b)

Option of the Company

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Old CiTL Scheme”) which was adopted on 30th September,
1991 expired on 29th September, 2001 but its term remain in full force and effect in respect of the
outstanding options previously granted. At 1st April, 2002 and 31st March 2003, there were options
granted under the Old CiTL Scheme outstanding entitling the holders to subscribe for 28,550,000 shares at
an exercise price of HK$0.4640. These options were granted on 17th December, 1999 with vesting period
from 17th December, 1999 to 29th June, 2000 and exercisable during the period from 30th June, 2000 to
29th June, 2003. During the year ended 31st March, 2004, 3 options were exercised. As a result of the
consolidation of the Company's ordinary shares as disciosed in note 20, the remaining options entitled the
holders thereof to subscribe for 5,709,999 new shares of the Company at an adjusted price of HK$2.32
per share. These remaining options were lapsed on 29th June, 2003.

The Company's new share option scheme (the “CiTL Scheme”) was adopted by the shareholders pursuant
10 a resolution passed on 20th September, 2002 for the primary purpose of providing the participants with
the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage participants to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. The CiTL Scheme will expire on 19th September, 2012,

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the CiTL Scheme and any
other schemes is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of
shareholders’ approval of the CiTL Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) or, if such 10% limit is refreshed,
at the date of shareholders’ approval of the renewal of the Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum aggregate
number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all cutstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the CiTL Scheme and any other share option schemes, must not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue from time to time. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company then in issue, without prior approval from the Company's and CiHL's shareholders. Each grant of
options to any director, chief executive or substantial shareholder must be approved by independent non-
executive directors of the Company and CIHL. Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or
any independent non-executive director or any of their respective associates would result in the shares of
the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of options already granted and to be granted in excess
of 0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital and with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 in the 12-
month period up to the date of grant must be approved in advance by the Company’s and CIHL's
sharehalders.

Options granted must be taken up within 30 days from the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 for each
lot of option granted. An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the CiTL Scheme at any
time during the effective period of the CiTL Scheme to be notified by the board of directors which shall not
be later than 10 years from the date of grant. The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the highest of the closing price of the Company’s share on the date of
grant, the average closing price of the share on the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant, and the nominal value.

No options were granted during the years ended 31st March, 2003 and 2004 under the CiTL Scheme.
Option of the ultimate holding company

‘Jnder the share option scheme which was adopted by CIHL on 30th September, 1991 (the “Old CIHL
Scheme”), the Board of Directors of CiHL has granted certain options to eligible employees, including
directors of the Company, to subscrioe for 24,150,000 shares in CIHL at an exercise price of HK$0.488.
These options were granted to the directors on 17th December, 1999 with vesting period from 17th
December, 1999 to 29th June, 2000 and exercisable during the period from 30th June, 2000 to 29th June,
2003. As a result of the consolidation of CiHL's shares, these options entitied the holders to subscribe for
4,830,000 new shares of CIHL at an adjusted price of HK$2.44 per share. These option were lapsed on
29th June, 2003.
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28. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which is registered under the Occupational Retirement
Scheme Ordinance (the "ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) for the
benefits of the Hong Kong employees. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of trustees. Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment
of the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme,
whereas all new employees joining the Group on or after 1st December, 2000 are required to join the MPF
Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, which
contribution is matched by the employee.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from both employees and the Group at rates ranging from
5% to 7.5% of the employee’s basic salary, depending on the length of service with the Group.

Where there are employees who leave the ORSO scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions
payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. The amount of forfeited contributions
utilised in this manner during the year was HK$569,000 (2003: HK$1,169,000).

The total cost charged to income statement of HK$3,682,000 (2003: HK$4,087,000) represents contributions
pay and payable to these schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting period net of forfeited
contributions. As at 31st March 2004, contributions of HK$250,000 (2003: HK$285,000) due in respect of the
reporting period had not been paid over to the schemes.

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s ultimate holding company, CIHL and its subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities are
regarded as related parties for the purpose of SSAP 20. Details of the material transactions with these companies
are as follows:

(a)  On 28th March, 2003, the Company renewed the management agreement with Chevalier (HK) Limited
("CHKL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of CIHL, for the provision of company secretarial, accounting, electronic
data processing, personnel and property management services by CHKL to the Group in respect of the year
ended 31st March, 2004 at a management fee calculated at the rate of 0.5% of the annual turnover of the
Group excluding those of its overseas subsidiaries. Management fees paid to CHKL during the year under
this agreement amounted to HK$2,376,000 (2003: HK$3,055,000). The management agreement expired
on 28th March, 2004 and has been renewed for a further term of one year.

(b)  During the year, the Group sold computer equipment and business machines to and provided maintenance
service to wholly-owned subsidiaries of CIHL totalling HK$4,492,000 (2003: HK$4,409,000). The price is
determined with reference to market rates.

(¢ During the year, the Group paid rentals determined with reference to market rates amounting to
HK$3,488,000 (2003: HK$5,042,000) to wholly-owned subsidiaries of CIHL, for the use of their premises
by the Group.

(d) During the year, the Group paid storage and delivery charges amounting to HK$4,167,000 (2003:
HK$4,295,000) and HK$1,483,000 (2003: HK$2,470,000) respectively to a wholly-owned subsidiary of
CIHL to cover its cost for services provided to the Group.

The outstanding balance due from the ultimate holding company arising from the above transactions and payment
of recurrent expenses on behalf of the Group as at 31st March, 2004 amounted to HK$245,000 whereas the
outstanding due to the ultimate holding company as at 31st March, 2004 amounted to HK$6,290,000.
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - continued

Apart from the above, the Group obtained repayment from an associate during the year. The amount outstanding
at 31st March, 2004 is HK$2,2 15,000 (2003: HK$2,546,000).

The balance with the ultimate holding company is unsecured and interest-free. The balance with the associate is
unsecured, interest-free and the Company has no intention to demand repayment from the associate in the next

financial year.
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Name of Company
Directly held by the Company:

Chevalier (OA) Holdings Limited

Chevalier iTech (S) Pte. Ltd.

Chevalier iTech Thai Limited®

Chevalier Telecom (Thailand)
Limited

Sup Aswin Limited

Indirectly held by the Company:

Chevalier (Computer) Limited

Chevalier iTech Services Limited
{Formerly known as Chevalier OA
{China) Limited)

Chevalier (Network Sofutions)
Limited

Chevalier (OA) Limited

Place or
country of
incorporation or
registration/
operation

Hong Kong

Singapore

Thailand

Thailand

Thafland

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Class of
shares

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Preference

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Issued and
paid up
capital

HK$31,600,000

$$500,000

BAHT18,980,000

BAHT1,020,000

BAHT15,000,000

BAHT15,000,000

HK$100,000

HK$2

HK$2

HK$100,000

Principal Subsidiaries

No. of
shares

316,000,000

500,000

189,800

10,200

150,000

150,000

100,000

100,000

Effective
percentage

of issued share
or registered
capital held

100
100

100

100

100

100

Principal
activities

Investment
holding

Trading of business
machines

Trading of computer
and business
machines

Trading of
telecommunication
equipment

Property investment

Trading and
servicing of
computer system
and equipment

Trading and
senvicing of
of computer
and business
machines

Network systems
and solution
Services

Trading of computer
and business
machines and
provision of repair
and maintenance
services




Place or Effective

country of percentage

incorporation or Issued and of issued share
registration/ Class of paid up No.of  orregistered Principal

Name of Company operation shares capital shares  capital held activities

Chevalier (OA) Services Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 100 Maintenance

services

Guangzhou Chevalier Tech The Mainland Not HK$5,000,000 Not 100 Maintenance
Services Ca., Ltd. applicable applicable SEIVICeS

Chevafier (Satellink) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$365,002 365,002 100 fnstallation of

satellite antennae

Chevalier (Biotech) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK§2 2 100 Investments in
{Formerly known as Chevalier securities
(Telecom) Limitad)

Chevalier iTech Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200,000,000 200,000,000 100 Trading of business
{Formerly known as Chevalier machines and
{TelePoint} Limied investments in

securities

Lucky Fine Limiteci Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 100 Property investment

and investments in
securities

All the subsidiaries in the Mainland China are wholly foreign owned enterprises.

# Every four preference shares of this company carry one vote and all such shares have no right to participate in the distribution of

surplus assets in case of winding-up or profits in excess of 10% for any one financial year.




